
ADJOURNED COUNCIL MEETING 
CITY OF WATERTOWN 

September 13, 2004 
5:30 P.M. 

 
MAYOR JEFFREY E.  GRAHAM PRESIDING 
 
PRESENT:  COUNCILMAN STEPHEN J. BRADLEY 
   COUNCILWOMAN ROXANNE M. BURNS 

COUNCILMAN PETER L. CLOUGH 
   COUNCILMAN TIMOTHY R. LABOUF 
   MAYOR GRAHAM 
 
ALSO PRESENT: CITY MANAGER MARY M. CORRIVEAU 
   ATTORNEY ROBERT J. SLYE 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY COUNCILMAN CLOUGH TO TAKE FROM THE 
TABLE THE RESOLUTION “SUPPORTING AN APPLICATION FOR 
FUNDING UNDER THE NEW YORK MAIN STREET PROGRAM TO BE 
SUBMITTED TO THE NEW YORK STATE HOUSING TRUST FUND 
CORPORATION BY NEIGHBORS OF WATERTOWN, INC. (Introduced to 
Council on September 7, 2004; tabled; appears in its entirety on page 183 of the 2004 
Council Minutes Book). 
 
MOTION WAS SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LABOUF AND CARRIED 
WITH ALL VOTING IN FAVOR THEREOF. 
 
Mrs. Corriveau advised Council that she had received a communication from Neighbors 
of Watertown asking that the request be withdrawn at this time. She explained that 
Neighbors understand that there are a number of questions and issues that need to be 
addressed. 
 
Councilwoman Burns questioned why the façade program was tied into the application 
for the Franklin Building. She asked what would happen to the façade program now that 
the application has been pulled. 
 
Mrs., Corriveau explained that both programs were done as one application and therefore 
there will be no façade program in the September round of funding. She explained that 
she didn’t know why it was written as one. Neighbors prepared it on behalf of the Trust. 
They planned to use the $100,000 invested by the Trust into the Franklin Building as a 
match for the $100,000 façade program. 
 
Councilwoman Burns asked if the individual property owners could have paid the 
matching amounts. 
 
Mrs. Corriveau explained that they could have done so at $10,000 per façade. 



 2

 
Councilwoman Burns remarked that this would have been a nice option for the City to 
have had. 
 
Councilman Clough asked if the City could apply for the façade program. 
 
Mrs. Corriveau explained that the application has to be from a not-for-profit or a housing 
trust fund corporation and therefore, could not be from the City. 
 
Councilwoman Burns remarked that it was generous of Neighbors to write the 
application. However, there should have been communication between the Trust, 
Neighbors and City staff, especially with the Downtown Development Specialist. She 
reiterated that it was unfortunate that the two issues were written together since it 
jeopardized the façade program. Councilwoman Burns questioned why the City 
representatives didn’t question the two being put together. 
 
Mrs. Corriveau explained that it was her understanding that the plan was to leverage the 
$100,000 that the Trust was going to invest into the Franklin Building as the match for 
the façade program. She commented that Council could send a message that Neighbors 
can have an application for the façade program and they could see if Neighbors would be 
willing to modify the application. 
 
Councilman Bradley commented that after all the questions he raised last week, no one 
called him about any of them.   
 
Mayor Graham commented that he and Mrs. Corriveau need to be more aggressive as 
representatives on the Trust board. 
 
Councilman Bradley commented that he believes that they need to be more informed by 
the Trust. 
 
Councilman LaBouf commented that everyone was aware last week that the 10 facades 
were included in the application.  He stated that while he had concerns about the Franklin 
Building, he considered the 10 facades when making his decision. He questioned 
Councilwoman Burns as to what her concerns were about the Franklin project. 
 
Councilwoman Burns responded that she feels these are two separate issues and one 
project should not hinge on the other. She stated that she didn’t have a problem with the 
Franklin Building being renovated and she had made her point very clear at the last 
meeting. 
 
Councilman Clough remarked that there had been lots of discussion on this whole issue. 
He stated that while he thinks the Trust did a great job of stabilizing the building, there 
had never been any discussion by the prior Council about what they would do with the 
building once it was stabilized. He commended the Trust for taking the initiative. 
However, he remarked that he didn’t think that the revitalization of Watertown is in low-



 3

income housing. He stated that a different level of income should be addressed. He 
remarked that the commercial part of the project was great and while the overall project 
wasn’t a bad project, spending $6 million is not the answer. He stated that the Trust and 
Neighbors need to go back and revisit the issue. Councilman Clough also remarked that 
the ideal solution would be to get it into private hands and let a private individual show 
that they are willing to put the money into that building. He also commented that 
Neighbors have done a lot of good things in the City. He stated that board service is a 
decision that we have to be made as well. 
 
Councilwoman Burns remarked that she was glad Councilman Clough brought out the 
point that there are other options for this property. She commented that it is a building 
that has potential for private investment. The building is in great shape and now it is time 
to try to market it. 
 
Mayor Graham explained that there were two options available regarding the resolution 
before them. It could be withdrawn by Councilman LaBouf who introduced it and 
Councilman Clough who seconded it or it could be voted on by the Council. 
 
Councilman LaBouf did not withdraw his introduction. Therefore, it went to a vote. 
 
AT THE CALL OF THE CHAIR VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE FOREGOING 
RESOLUTION AND DEFEATED WITH ALL VOTING NAY EXCEPT 
COUNCILMAN LABOUF VOTING YEA 
 
AT THE CALL OF THE CHAIR MEETING WAS DULY ADJOURNED AT 6:00 
P.M. BY MOTION OF COUNCILWOMAN BURNS, SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMAN BRADLEY AND CARRIED WITH ALL VOTING IN FAVOR 
THEREOF. 
 
Donna M. Dutton 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

 
 


